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Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC)
October 8, 2025, Meeting Minutes

Meeting Location
Virtual Zoom
Remote Teams/Zoom Meeting link (update with actual link)
Attendance
Members Present (In-person and remote)
· Amy Maron, Chair
· Robin Barr, Vice Chair
· Kaela Martins, Secretary 
· Barry Shanoff
· Lauren Greenberger
· Peter Mukerjee
· Kavita Battula
· Michelle Ennis
· Chaz Miller
· Andrew Cassilly
· Troy Cavell
Members Not Present
· Fred Kranz
· Dapo Awe
· John Meyer
· Dawn Selis
· Mark Symborski (M-NCPPC rep, nonvoting)
Proof of Quorum
Quorum was met with 11 SWAC members in attendance.
Staff Present
· David Frank, Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) Recycling and Resources Management Division (RRMD) Waste Reduction and Recycling Section
· Kaley Laleker, Division Director, Zero Waste
· Willie Wainer, Division Director, RRMD
· Lisa Shine, Executive Assistant, RRMD
· Alan Pultyniewicz, RRMD
Guests
· James Walter
· Linda Bergofsky
· Rita Beck
· Dave Rosenbaum
· Elisabeth Fidler
· Mike Ewall
Call To Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:32 pm.
Review and Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes
Previous meeting minutes were approved at 5:34 pm with no questions.
Meeting Minutes Agenda Items
· Discussion of Request for Proposals for Long Haul of Municipal Solid Waste by Kaley Laleker, Chief, Zero Waste Programs Division, Montgomery County Department of Environmental Protection
a. Montgomery County was seeking proposals for the operation of the Shady Grove Transfer Station, including long-haul transportation and disposal of municipal solid waste (MSW). The selected contractor will manage daily operations.
1. Timeline & Submission: Proposals must be submitted by November 11, 2025. A virtual pre-submission conference occurred on October 1, 2025, and an on-site tour was held on October 7, 2025. The initial contract term is 5 years, with up to five 1-year renewal options.
1. Contractor Requirements: The contractor must provide a comprehensive team including managers, supervisors, operators, drivers, etc. Contractor’s responsibilities include:
1. Operate the Transfer Station and Public Unloading Facility (PUF)
2. Accept, process, load, transfer, stage, transport, and dispose of MSW
3. Coordinate with other contractors handling DOT-type materials, yard trim, HHW, and recyclables
4. Maintain site cleanliness, safety, and infrastructure
5. Respond to emergencies and provide contingency operations
6. Comply with environmental permits and operational plans
1. Evaluation Criteria: Proposals will be scored out of 400 points. Criteria includes:
1. Project feasibility (60)
2. Carbon footprint (25)
3. Environmental & social justice impact (25)
4. Landfill diversion (35)
5. Timing (30)
6. Price proposal (60)
7. Registration documents (5)
8. Local Business Preference (30)
9. Minority, Female, Disabled (MFD) Participation (30)
10. Interview evaluation (100)
a. Questions:
· What section of the RFP discusses environmental justice, social justice, and climate impact requirements that would give points to the contractor?
b. The environmental justice, social justice, and climate impact criteria are discussed starting on page 44 of the RFP.
· How many people were at the pre-bid conference?
c. There were between 10-15 people at the pre-bid conference.
· Does the DEP intend to go to any of the proposed disposal sites and send technical staff there to look at the facilities?
d. It was not discussed whether DEP would send technical staff to inspect the proposed disposal sites, but that could be an option.
· Will there be a public hearing on this proposal before the County Council?
e. A public hearing before the County Council is possible, to get their buy-in before the budget is submitted.
· How are the environmental justice and social justice criteria established and weighted in the RFP?
f. The RFP does not list specific criteria but requires proposers to submit information that the county can use to evaluate environmental justice and social justice impacts.
· How does the C&D recycling plan factor into the RFP, given the discussion of potentially bringing in a private contractor for C&D?
g. The contractor has to propose a plan for recycling the C&D materials coming to the transfer station, even though there is discussion of potentially using a private contractor for C&D.
· Will the rail line be available for bringing food scraps to Dickerson when that program comes online?
h. Using the rail line to bring food scraps to Dickerson would likely be very difficult logistically, due to challenges with getting a dedicated crew from CSX for just a weekly train.
· Will the hiring of a long-haul company affect the entry and exit of trucks coming to the transfer station?
i. The long-haul company's operations are planned to minimize impact on the existing truck traffic coming to the transfer station.
· What will happen with the rail cars currently used?
j. The rail cars currently used will not be utilized in the short-term, but may be an option for the medium to long-term with a different contractor.
· How are the environmental justice and social justice criteria actually established and weighted in the RFP?
k. The RFP does not list specific environmental justice and social justice criteria, just a requirement for proposers to submit information for the county to evaluate.
· What is the zoning requirement for the disposal facility?
l. The disposal facility must be a county approved and permitted facility.
· Is there any labor requirement that doesn't apply to this contract?
m. No, there are no labor requirements that don't apply
· Will there be a new County Council committee configuration, and will Evan Glass remain the chair of the relevant committee?
n.  The committee chair is expected to remain the same, but there will be a new County Council president.
B. Discussion of Save-As-You-Throw (SAYT) Phase I Implementation by Alan Pultyniewicz, RRMD
· 12-month pilot, started June 26, 2025, in south Silver Spring with about 706 households.
· Of the 706 households, about 527 chose the 35-gallon trash cart and 165 selected the 65-gallon size.
· Chosen pilot area represents typical county demographics and waste patterns, minimizing impact on private haulers.
· Residents received county-provided carts (default 35-gallon, optional 65-gallon) to limit trash capacity.
· Old open mixed recycling bins were replaced with 35-gallon lidded carts, doubling capacity.
· Combined collection of food scraps and yard trim added using a new 35-gallon green cart with a locking lid.
· Outreach and education has been in the form of bilingual materials (English, Spanish, Mandarin), community events, brochures, and online cart requests.
· Weekly inspections are being done to track container use, contamination, and overflow. Resident surveys to gather feedback.
· Questions:
· Will SAYT reduce fees for residents? 
a. Yes, fees will vary based on container size. Smaller carts like 35-gallon will cost less than larger ones. Exact fee structures are still being evaluated to ensure they cover all program costs.
· How does the pilot program support elderly and disabled residents? 
b. Residents unable to move containers, and without assistance at home, can apply for an exemption by contacting the program directly.
· Will the program include financial incentives? 
c. Phase one focuses on operational logistics. Financial mechanisms, including potential incentives, are still under internal review and development.
· Are residents informed about food scrap drop-off options? 
d. Yes, some residents prefer drop-off sites like Silver Spring over curbside collection. 
C. SWAC Member Term Limits
· There are several SWAC Members whose terms have ended. The office of boards, committees, and commissions is backlogged with several that need readvertisement of open positions. When their term is up, affected SWA members will be notified.
D. Public Comment
· James Walter, CEO of ABOS Bioenergy, and the Strategic Innovation Advisor for Bethesda Green discussed his focus on tackling the East Coast’s trash crisis. He has completed research on emerging technologies to tackle this, including a system that transforms unsorted trash and medical waste into usable energy with zero emissions and no combustion. He will share specific research, deliverables, etc. with SWAC for review.
E. SWAC Proposal to Improve Communication with County Council and DEP
· Amy had earlier distributed to SWAC members a draft letter to the County Council and DEP urging them to improve communication and coordination with SWAC.
· Suggestions discussed:
a. Having Council staff regularly attend SWAC meetings or hold structured briefings with DEP.
b. Requiring annual or semiannual updates from DEP to the Council on solid waste issues.
c. Ensuring communication is systematic and consistent, not dependent on individuals or departments requesting time.
d. SWAC members suggested we avoid making demands of the Council or framing the letter as a complaint; instead, it should highlight the importance of regular dialogue during a time of major changes in waste management
· A subcommittee will be formed to draft the letter, with a goal of completion by the November SWAC meeting
Next Meeting
The next meeting will be November 5th at 5:30 pm.
Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:27 pm.
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